
 
 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
SELECTBOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2023 AT 6:30PM 

MARTIN MEMORIAL HALL 
5259 US ROUTE 5, ASCUTNEY,  VT 05030 

 
ZOOM MEETING AVAILABLE 

CLICK THE MOUNTAIN ON WEBSITE HOMEPAGE OR 
PHONE NUMBER: (929) 205 - 6099 | MEETING ID: 542-595-4364 |                                   

NO PARTICIPANT ID: PRESS # MEETING PASSCODE: 8021 

 
 

PHONE 
(802) 674-2626 

 
FAX 

(802) 674-2117 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Agenda Review 
4. Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
5. Review Minutes from Previous Meeting: 12/4/2023 
6. Weathersfield Police Department  
7. Credit Cards: Vote to authorize the Treasurer to Change the Primary Account Holder 
8. Wastewater Feasability Study 30% Report 
9. Salt Shed Project – Local Concerns  
10. Second Class Liquor License Renewal 

a. Fireside Beverage, LLC  
11. Backhoe Replacement  
12. FY25 Town Meeting Articles  
13. Town Manager Update 
14. Appointments 

a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Conservation Commission (1 Vacancy) 
c. Energy Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Green Up Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
e. Lister (2 Vacancies) 
f. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
g. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
h. Village Wastewater Committee  

i. Ann Marie Christensen 
ii. John Arrison 

iii. Mark Richardson 
i. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 

15. Approve Warrant 
16. Any other business 
17. Future Agenda Items 
18. Adjourn 

 
 

 

 

 



 
Select Board 

Martin Memorial Hall 
5259 Route 5, Ascutney VT 
Monday, December 4, 2023 

6:30 PM 
REGULAR MEETING 

Draft Minutes 
 

Select Board Members Present: Michael Todd, David Fuller, Kelly O’Brien, August 
Murray, Wendy Smith (remote) 
Select Board Members Absent:  
 
Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
Others Present: 
Malia Lordere Halle Abuayyash (remote) Barbara Thomas 
Ray Stapleton Joshua Dauphin (remote) Ryan Gumbart 
Darrin Spaulding  Colby Hodgdon  
Annmarie Christensen (remote) Cheise Hodgdon  
 

1 Call to Order 
Mr. Todd called the meeting to order at 6:32pm. 
 

2 Pledge of Allegiance 
Dr. Murray led the pledge of allegiance. 

 
3 Agenda Review 

The Chair moved the agenda around so that individuals attending the meeting 
for particular items did not have to sit through so much of the meeting. The 
Lister’s report and the Land Use Update were moved up on the agenda.  
 

4 Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
Mr. Fuller stated that the school would be discussing the budget within the 
next few weeks and that it is being reported that the homestead and non-
homestead tax rates are anticipated to be around 18.5%.  
 
Chief Spalding shared the progress on the work being done with the firetruck.  

 
5 Review Minutes from Previous Meeting(s): 11/20/23 

Additions/corrections/deletions: 
a. Executive Session time correction.  
b. Add Ms. Smith’s attendance at Executive Session.  

Motion: To approve the 11/20/23 minutes.  
Made by: Ms. O’Brien  Second: Mr. Fuller 

https://tax.vermont.gov/sites/tax/files/documents/2023%20Education%20Tax%20Rate%20Letter.pdf


Vote: All in favor 
 

6 Lister’s Report – Solid Waste Fee Assessment 
The Lister gave an update on if everyone was paying their share of waste 
management, in which she stated that everyone was and that no one was being 
charged twice. The Select Board discussed if there was any discrepancy with 
the list. They concluded that a voter’s checklist might be good, as well as a 
possible policy amendment in the future and how the biggest hit with taxes 
will come from the CLA. The Select Board inquired as to what formula the 
State of Vermont is using to come up with their numbers.  
 

 
 

7 Land Use Update  
The Land Use Administrator gave some updates on what has been going on 
the Land Use Department, describing the Waterway Naming Project, the 
Town Forest Kiosks and Interpretive Trails, New Member Packets, the Town 
Forest Management Plan, and Regularly Scheduled Hikes/Historical Walks.  
 
The Land Use Administrator added that PUD hearing continuation for Habitat 
for Humanity will be at the next Planning Commission meeting on December 
11, 2023. The Planning Commission has been working on the Town Plan 
Energy Section and it could be a soon as January that it is sent to the Select 
Board for review.  
 
The Select Board discussed some discrepancies with the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment (ZBA) minutes and it was concluded that the Land Use 
Administrator would be combining the ZBA and Planning Commission 
minutes going forward.  
 

8 Vote to Award Temporary Bridge Bid 
On 10/25/23, the Town advertised an Invitation for Bids to install a temporary 
bridge on Ascutney Basin Road. The Ascutney Basin Bridge was damaged 
during the storm back in July, requiring a weight limit restriction. The 
temporary bridge will be used until the bridge deck is replaced on the 
permanent bridge.  
 
The Town received 1 bid from Daniels Construction for $69,500 to install the 
temporary bridge and dense grade approaches, and $1,500 per month for the 
rental of the bridge. The Town will be advertising an Invitation for Bids to 



replace the bridge deck on our permanent bridge within the next few weeks 
and anticipate that project commencing in spring/summer 2024. The Town 
anticipates renting the bridge for 9-12 months.   

 
The Select Board discussed FEMA requirements for reimbursement. The 
Town’s estimated share of all FEMA projects is between $75,000 & $87,500. 
The Town does have a Highway Capital Maintenance & Improvements 
reserve that has $89,685.09 and will have $104,685.09 if the recommended 
year-end fund balance allocations were to be approved. 
 
The Select Board discussed the damage to the Ascutney Basin Bridge, how it 
had been inspected, and the extent of the damage. The Select Board agreed 
that there wasn’t a choice about fixing it or not because it is a matter of safety 
for residents and businesses that use the bridge.  

 
Motion: To award the temporary bridge bid to Daniel’s Construction in 
the amount of $69,500 for the installation and $1,500 per month for the 
rental.  
Made by: Dr. Murray  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: 4 yays, 1 absent at vote  

 
Motion: To allow the Town Manager, Chair, Treasurer, and Highway 
Superintendent to sign the loan documents for the temporary bridge and 
rental for Ascutney Basin Bridge.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in Favor 

 
9 Bicycle Pedestrian Path – Perkinsville 

The Transportation Alternatives Program was presented to the Select Board 
and discussion was had about how having alternative transport is part of the 
Town Plan, as well as the benefits of having a bike path in the village, safety 
concerns, and putting forward funds but also liking the ability to apply for 
grants. The Select Board discussed the language in the draft cover letter and 
pointed out places appropriate for revision. The Town Manager will make the 
revisions.  
 

Motion: To submit the grant and to authorize the Chair to sign the cover 
letter for the grant once the cover letter is revised. 
Made by: Dr. Murray  Second: Mr. Fuller 
Vote: All in Favor 
 
 
 

 

https://vtrans.vermont.gov/highway/local-projects/transport-alt
https://www.weathersfieldvt.org/sites/g/files/vyhlif6216/f/uploads/weathersfieldtownplan_0.pdf


10 Appropriations 

 
 
Motion: To approve the FY24-25 funding requests, with the 9 being in the 
Special Articles and the rest to be included in the General Fund.  
Made by: Dr. Murray  Second: Mr. Fuller 
Vote: All in Favor 

 



11 FY25 General Fund Budget 
The Select Board had previously discussed all three budgets at a previous 
meeting, but had been waiting for the numbers for workers compensation and 
insurance to come back. In total, there was a fiscal increase of 1.8 cents. If to 
assume the Grand List is the same as last year, the Town would be looking at 
two and a half percent, which is an $18 increase on per $100,000 municipal 
value.  

 
 

Motion: To approve the FY25 General Fund budget $1,810,161 of which 
$1,368,442 to be raised by taxes. 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in Favor 

 
The Select Board discussed the increase in the Ascutney Fire Department’s 
budget. The Select Board and the Ascutney Fire Chief went over the line 
items and discussed some of the rational for the increases, which related to 
equipment and PPE, particularly helmets, and necessity of the equipment and 
quantity was discussed at length.  
 



 

 
 

12 FY25 Highway Fund Budget 
The Highway Department budget had been updated to include the COLA & 
Healthcare decision. The budget also includes the new Childcare Contribution 
payroll tax at .33%. Overall, the budget is increasing by $16,075 or 1.35%. 
Last year, the Town used $46,689 in fund balance to limit tax increases, and 
proposed the use of $20,000 this year.  



 

 



 
 

Motion: To approve the FY25 Highway Budget in the amount of 
$1,188,569, of which $987,690 to be raised by taxes.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in Favor 

 
13 FY25 Solid Waste Budget 

 
 



 
 

Motion: To approve the FY25 Solid Waste Budget in the amount of 
$378,314.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

The Select Board discussed having a survey for the voters to take on what 
they would like to see happen with Solid Waste.  

 
14 Town Manager Update 

a. Police Cruiser 
There is an invitation for bid on the police cruiser, but there will likely be 
further discussion on this issue in the future.  
 

15 Appointments 
a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Conservation Commission (1 Vacancy) 
c. Energy Coordnator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Green Up Coordnator (1 Vacancy) 
e. Lister (2 Vacancies) 
f. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
g. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
h. Village Wastewater Committee  

i. Ann Marie Christensen 
ii. John Arrison 



iii. Mark Richardson 
i. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 

i. Andrea Murray 
 

Motion: To appoint Andrea Murray to the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: 4 yays, 1 abstention- Dr. Murray 
 
The Village Wastewater Committee will be addressed at a future meeting.  
 

16 Approve Warrant 
To approve the warrants for 12/4/2023 as followed: 
 
General Funds 
Operating Expenses: $44,855.50 
Payroll: $17,484.96 
 
Highway Fund 
Operating Expenses: $45,066.88 
Payroll: $8,696.91 
 
Solid Waste Management Fund 
Operating Expenses: $212.89 
Payroll: $1,991.81 
 

Library 
Payroll: $2,361.42 
Operating Expenses: $28.50 
 
Veterans Memorial $43.94 
ARPA- Roof Replacement 
$7,786.89 
 
Grand Totals: 
Operating Expenses: $97,994.60 
Payroll: $30,535.10  

 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in Favor 
 

17 Any Other Business 
None.  
 

18 Future Agenda Items 
• Town Meeting Articles 
• Backhoe  

 
Motion: To go into Executive Session. 
Made by: Dr. Murray  Second: Mr. Fuller 
Vote: All in favor 
 
The Select Board went into Executive Session at 9:26pm. No action was 
taken.  
 

19 Adjourn 



Motion: To adjourn the meeting. 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in favor 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:30pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Nichole Gagnon 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WEATHERSFIELD SELECT BOARD 
 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Michael Todd, Chairperson 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Wendy Smith, Selector 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
August Murray, Selector 
 
 
_____________________________ 
David Fuller, Vice-Chairperson



 



Treasurer, Town of Weathersfield 
Weathersfield, Vermont 

 
 
 

TO: Selectboard 
 

FR: Steve Hier, Town Treasurer 
 

DA: 10/18/23 
 

RE: Change in Primary Accountholder for Town credit cards 
 
 
   

 Our designated Primary Accountholder is currently the only person 
authorized to discuss our credit cards with the bank.  Other users can be set up to access 
information concerning charges to the individual cards and remaining card balances but 
our current Primary has not set up any of those privileges. 
 
 Our current designated Primary Accountholder is no longer employed by the 
Town so we need to make a change.  The bank requires a signed Board letter stating that 
the Board approved a change in the Primary Credit Card Accountholder. 
 
 Brandon and I have spoken and we are both in agreement in recommending 
that I be appointed as the new Primary Accountholder.   
 
 We respectfully request that the Board consider adopting a motion to change 
the Primary Accountholder for the town’s M&T Bank credit cards to Steve Hier, the 
Town Treasurer. 
 
 Thanks.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 

 
ASCUTNEY VILLAGE 

COMMUNITY WASTEWATER 
FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 
30% Report Draft 

 
 
 
 

WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2023 
 
  

 



 

 
With Offices in 

East Middlebury, VT | Rutland, VT | West Lebanon, NH 
www.Ottercrk.com  

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
 

ASCUTNEY VILLAGE 
COMMUNITY WASTEWATER 

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 
 

2023 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................... 4 
1.0 Project Planning ....................................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Location, and Study Area ............................................................................................................................ 5 
1.2 Goals of the Study .......................................................................................................................................... 5 
1.3 Planning Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 6 
1.4 Environmental Resources Present ........................................................................................................... 6 
1.5 Historical Resources Present ...................................................................................................................... 9 
1.6 Population Trends ...................................................................................................................................... 10 
1.7 Regulatory Requirements ........................................................................................................................ 11 
1.8 Community Engagement ......................................................................................................................... 12 

2.0  Existing Conditions ................................................................................................................ 13 

2.1 Study Area ..................................................................................................................................................... 13 
2.2 History ............................................................................................................................................................. 13 
2.3 Existing Community Water Systems (Study Area) .......................................................................... 13 
2.4 Existing Wastewater Systems (Study Area) ........................................................................................ 14 
2.5 Design Flows ................................................................................................................................................. 14 
2.6 Water / Energy / Waste Audits ................................................................................................................ 15 

3.0  Need For Project ..................................................................................................................... 16 

3.1 Health, Sanitation, and Security ............................................................................................................. 16 
3.2 Aging Infrastructure ................................................................................................................................... 16 
3.3 Reasonable Growth .................................................................................................................................... 16 

 
Figures:  
Figure 1 – Project Investigation Map 
Figures 2-5 Pertain to Perkinsville Village 
Figure 6 – Investigation Area 
Figure 7 – Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
Figure 8 – Onsite Sewage Disposal Soils Map 
 
 



 

 
With Offices in 

East Middlebury, VT | Rutland, VT | West Lebanon, NH 
www.Ottercrk.com  

Tables: 
Table 1 – Ascutney Village Hazardous Waste Sites  
Table 2 – Population Trends 
Table 3 – Regulatory Summary for Wastewater Systems in Vermont 
Table 4 - Isolation Distances as outlined in the WW Rules 
Table 5 – Proposed System Design Flow 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix A – Weathersfield Zoning Map 
Appendix B – ANR Atlas Natural Resource Maps 
Appendix C – Weathersfield Town Plan 
Appendix D – Excerpts from the Connecticut River – Black River – Mill Brook Tactical Basin Plan 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

To be completed once the report is in 60-90%  



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 5 

1.0 PROJECT PLANNING 
 
The Town of Weathersfield (hereinafter referred to as “the Town”) is a rural-residential 
community in Windsor County, Vermont with two densely developed designated village 
centers. The village centers include Ascutney Village and Perkinsville Village. Both Villages were 
analyzed as part of this report and are depicted in Figure 1. 

 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc. (OCE) has developed this study in collaboration with the Town and 
to adhere to the Outline of a Preliminary Engineering Report for Vermont Village Wastewater 
Projects. 

   
1.1 Location, and Study Area 

 
The “Study Area” for this report is limited to the Village Center Designation limits and a 1,320-
foot buffer from the Village Center Designation boundary. This area is defined as such due to 
regulations that are related to funding for any potential project resulting from this report. 
Connections outside of the service area will not be eligible for Water Investment Division’s 
Village Wastewater funding. The Ascutney Village Center, project limits, surrounding 
topography, and other notable features are depicted in Figure 2.  

 
The “Study Area” is defined as the area the Town will focus on providing opportunities for 
wastewater solutions and is the designated Village Center for Ascutney Village in the Town of 
Weathersfield, Vermont. The study area is roughly situated between the intersection of VT Route 
12, Route 131, and Route 5, Riley Drive, Jenness Road, and Hidden Glen and Cemetery Roads.  

 
1.2 Goals of the Study 

 
The existing Town Plan indicates the following broad-based goals regarding water and 
wastewater disposal: 
 
 Protect surface and groundwater resources to assure an adequate water supply for 

residents and commercial establishments. 
 

 Develop options that provide adequate wastewater disposal for all properties in Ascutney 
with inadequate/failing wastewater systems.  

 
Under the topic of economic development, the Town aims to provide economic benefit to the 
community, while being consistent with the goals of maintaining historical development 
patterns and encouraging the preservation of the Town’s natural resources. 

 
 Develop an effective planning process. 

 
 Effectively manage future growth. 

 
 Maintain and enhance recreational opportunities. 

 
 Promote opportunities for adequate housing to meet the needs of all residents in Ascutney. 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 6 

 
 Provide outstanding educational and childcare services to the community. 

 
The specific objectives for this study are: 
 
 Review readily available information, including previous studies, to identify areas where 

construction of new community onsite or offsite disposal systems have been considered in 
the past, are needed based on current uses, or would be necessary if new development 
occurs; 

 
 Identify potential wastewater disposal sites; 

 
 Develop and analyze wastewater treatment system(s) and/or management alternatives; 

 
 Prepare preliminary conceptual plans and cost opinions for meeting the immediate needs 

of the Town; 
 

 Present preliminary funding options and the potential range of user fees that may be 
needed to support the preliminary concepts; 

 
 Develop the Study following the Water Investment Division and USDA Rural Development 

Preliminary Engineering Report standards so identified alternatives can pursue further 
funding as needed. 

 
1.3 Planning Analysis 

 
The Town has ten (10) zoning districts that specify the types of land use allowed within each 
area. These zones are; Conservation 10, Hamlet, Highway-Commercial, Industrial, Rural-
Residential, Rural-Residential Reserve, Village, and Historic Preservation.   Most of the Ascutney 
Village Study Area lies within the Village and Highway-Commercial-Residential districts. The 
zoning bylaws do not have wastewater regulations that apply to specific zoning districts. The 
town zoning map can be found in Appendix A. 
 
The Ascutney Village Center is one of the highest-density developments in the Town, along with 
Perkinsville Village. Providing the Villages with community-based wastewater solutions would 
greatly reduce the limits on the development of the Village due to small-scale residential 
wastewater systems and alleviate the risk of systems failing in a high-density development area. 
A community-based system would also allow for economic growth for local businesses and 
additional housing opportunities. 
 

1.4 Environmental Resources Present 
 
A community project of this type will likely require federal funding, and thus an environmental 
review under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) will be required. The study area was 
reviewed using the State of Vermont Agency of Natural Resources online interactive database 
and mapping tools.  Appendix B includes ANR Resource Atlas Maps depicting known natural 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 7 

and environmental resources within the project area.  Mapped resources that are shown 
include: 

 
 Surface water (lakes, ponds, and streams); 
 Floodways, Floodplains, and River Corridors; 
 Wetlands and Vernal Pools; 
 Primary Agricultural Soils; 
 Hazardous waste sites, hazardous waste site generators 
 Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Species; 
 Significant natural communities and Deer wintering areas; 
 Drinking Water Source Protection Areas; and 
 
A preliminary desktop review of the Study Area for these environmental resources and 
constraints was conducted and key findings are summarized below: 

 
Surface Waters 
 
The major surface water present in Ascutney Village is the Connecticut River. Ascutney Village 
sits to the west of the River, with New Hampshire across the bank, to the east. According to the 
Weathersfield Town Plan (Appendix C) adopted in 2017, the Connecticut River is a major scenic 
and recreational resource and has been designated an American Heritage River. The 
Connecticut River is the town’s largest body of surface water, and the stretch of river from the 
mouth of the Ompompanoosuc River to Weathersfield Bow supports a rich collection of plant 
and animal life.  
 
Mill Brook flows from west to east, emptying into the Connecticut River. The Brook is the site of 
a deep walled gorge with two historic mill dams. It is enjoyed by anglers and swimmers; though 
it is lightly used. Its significance is mostly as a scenic area. 
 
Weathersfield lies within the Connecticut River Drainage Basin; split among the watersheds of 
the Black River, Mill Brook, and smaller east-draining watersheds south of Mill Brook (Basin #10). 
The VT ANR has developed a Tactical Basin Plan (TBP) for Basin #10, which will include both the 
Mill Brook and the Black River. Refer to the TBP in Appendix D. 
 
Floodways, Floodplains, and River Corridors 
 
Flood hazard areas and river corridors are present within the Study Area, mainly following Mill 
Brook and parts of the Connecticut River. According to the Town Plan, there are two areas of 
flood concern in Ascutney. These are; where Mill Brook intersects Route 5, and where Mill Brook 
intersects Tenney Hill Road. The Tenney Hill Road location has experienced repeat flood and 
erosion damages in recent storms. The mapped river corridors roughly follow the FEMA 
floodplain areas.  
 
Wetlands 
 
There is only one mapped Class II wetland that has been identified within the study area, 
following a tributary from west to east into Mill Brook. Primary wetland values include fish, 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 8 

wildlife, and migratory bird habitat; flood and erosion protection; nutrient and pollution 
filtration; groundwater recharge; aesthetics and open space; and sites for educational and 
recreational activities.  
 
It is reasonable to presume that unmapped wetlands may exist on some properties within the 
study area. Further analysis and site-specific wetland assessments will be required for any 
potential disposal areas and other infrastructure. Development within any wetland deemed 
Class II is not permitted, but temporary impacts to those wetlands or their associated buffers 
may be permittable under certain circumstances.  The overall goal of any infrastructure project 
should be to avoid and minimize wetland impacts.  
 
Hazardous Waste Sites 
 
The State of Vermont within the Study Area has listed five hazardous waste sites. All the sites 
are clustered in the Village Center, and a summary of the sites can be found below in Table 1.  

 
Table 1 – Summary of Hazardous Sites identified within the Ascutney Village Center 
 

Hazardous 
Site 

Site 
Number 

Source of 
Contamination 

Priority 
Use 

Restriction? 
Project Status 

Site Closure 
Date 

BP Station 900538 UST – Gasoline NFAP No Soils Stockpiled 9-04-1992 

Ascutney 
Citgo 

911127 UST – Gasoline SMAC No 
The treatment system 
turned off; GW meets 
GWESs in 2011 

5-10-2011 

Ascutney 
Sunoco 

941708 UST – Diesel 
UST – Gasoline MED No 

5 MWs above VGES, FP. 
SSI completed Spring 
2021 Contam. 
Migrating from 
HWS#982524 

-- 

South Main 
Yankee Inc. 
(Ascutney 

Texaco) 

982363 UST – Gasoline SMAC No 
UST Pipe replacement, 
contam. in soil found, 
no impact on GW 

10-29-1998 

Exit 8 Mobil 982524 
UST – Gasoline 

UST – Heating Oil 
Waste Oil 

LOW No 

Contamination is 
migrating off-site to 
Ascutney Sunoco SMS 
#941708. 2 of 5 MWs 
above VGES biennial 
sample 

-- 

Impacts from these sites would be limited to the construction of potential sewer piping 
infrastructure. Should a project move forward, considerations would be made to make a 
contaminated soils plan for the possibility of running into contaminated soils during 
construction.  
 
Primary Agricultural Soils 
 
In addition to the surrounding farmlands, the Village Center does contain soils that are classified 
as primary agricultural soil by the State of Vermont.  The designation is important for 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 9 

development projects which would require an Act 250 permit, as impacts on the land’s ability 
to be used for agriculture must be minimized.  Due to existing uses and development densities 
within the Study Area, most of the identified Prime Ag soils would not meet the Agency of 
Agricultural definition because the soils are of not adequate size to support a large-scale 
agricultural operation. 

 
Fish and Wildlife Resources 
 
Four areas within the 1,320-foot potential service boundary contain Rare, Threatened, and 
Endangered (RTE) species. The RTE species areas are marked as an animal; and are located on 
the edge, and in the Connecticut River. Additionally, there are two areas on the southwestern 
border of the Study area, on the bank of the Connecticut River, which are marked as having 
uncommon animal species. 

 
Significant natural communities and Deer wintering areas 
 
There are no known significant natural communities mapped within the Study Area. A small 
portion of Deer Wintering Areas are present to the northwest of Ascutney Village, and on the 
1,500-foot boundary.  
 
Deer wintering areas within the potential service boundary are located on steep slopes and are 
not suitable for on-site wastewater disposal systems. 
 
Groundwater Resources 
 
Residents of Ascutney Village utilize private wells and the Ascutney Fire District No. 2 public 
water supply system (WSID#5339) to obtain potable drinking water.  
 

1.5 Historical Resources Present 
 
According to the Town Plan, Important historic structures and sites have been inventoried in 
the 1993 publication, Historic Sites and Structures, Weathersfield, Vermont. Sites and structures 
were included in the inventory because of their interesting architecture, their location(s) relative 
to Weathersfield or Vermont history, or their association with old Weathersfield families.  

 
There are no identified Native American archeological sites in Weathersfield, but. the 
Weathersfield area is likely to have Native American sites and artifacts. Significant Native 
American sites have been investigated at the confluence of the Sugar River and Connecticut 
River across from Ascutney where a Native American village site was discovered when the 
present bridge was built between Ascutney and Claremont. Lands adjacent to water courses 
were used by earlier populations for fishing and hunting grounds, water supplies, agriculture, 
and transportation. These lands may yield archeological artifacts and should be considered 
sensitive.  
 
When developing zoning bylaws, the town should consider means of encouraging the 
continued use and maintenance of historic structures and sites. 



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 10 

 
Archaeological resource assessments (ARA) will be required for any identified alternative in this 
report. 
 

1.6 Population Trends 
 
According to the 2020 U.S. Census, Ascutney currently has a population of 2,842. This represents 
an increase of 17 residents from the 2010 Census population of 2,825. Refer to the population 
by State, County, and Town presented in Table 2 below.  
 
Table 2 – Population Trends 

 
Growth in Weathersfield during this period has been slowly decreasing. Though it seems that 
the population has increased in the last decade, average growth over the last 30 years has been 
near zero and does not constitute a definite increasing trend. 

  

Year Vermont ±%
Windsor 
County

±%
Town of 

Weathersfield
±%

1990 562,758 -- 54,055 -- 2,674 --
2000 608,827 8.2% 57,418 6.2% 2,788 4.3%
2010 625,741 2.8% 56,670 -1.3% 2,825 1.3%
2020 643,077 2.8% 57,753 1.9% 2,842 0.6%

Average ±% = 0.46% Average ±% = 0.23% Average ±% = 0.21%

Data Source: US Decennial Census
Note:



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 11 

1.7 Regulatory Requirements 
 
The Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) Drinking Water and 
Groundwater Protection Division (DWGPD) regulates most of the water and wastewater 
systems throughout the State.  Table 3 presents a summary of the different categories of 
systems that may be considered for the Town in developing water and wastewater solutions for 
the Village. 
 
Table 3 – Regulatory Summary for Wastewater Systems in Vermont 

 
In Vermont, sanitary wastewater disposal systems are regulated under two sets of rules, 
depending on the design capacity.  Systems that are less than 6,500 gallons per day are 
considered “small-scale” wastewater systems and are subject to Chapter 1 of the Vermont 
Environmental Protection Rules (EPRs), also known as the Vermont Wastewater and Potable 
Water Supply Rules (WW Rules). The WW Rules are applicable from single-family residential 
septic systems up to shared community systems equivalent to the size of development of 
approximately 25 homes. 
Soil-based wastewater systems with capacities of 6,500 gallons per day or greater are 
considered “indirect discharges” of sewage and are subject to Chapter 14 of the EPRs, the 
Indirect Discharge Rules (IDRs). For larger scale systems above 30,000 gpd (or approximately 
120 homes), the system is required to provide secondary wastewater treatment (such as an 
aerated lagoon) prior to discharge.  At this size, the IDRs also allow for “spray disposal,” which is 
similar to an irrigation system, where treated wastewater effluent is spread over a protected 
area and allowed to percolate into the ground.  These required systems are typically used in the 
ski areas and other locations where subsurface disposal is not practical. Systems larger than 
40,000 gpd require tertiary treatment, which requires significantly more expensive capital and 
operational costs.  These types of systems are likely not applicable for the Town of 
Weathersfield. 
Some wastewater systems have treatment facilities which discharge directly to a surface water 
source such as a lake or river, are regulated under the federal National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit program, administered by the DEC Watershed Management 
Division.  

Category of System
Regulatory 
Authority Description

Applicability to Arlington 
Community WW Study

Small-Scale EPR, Ch. 1, WW Rules
For soil-based systems with capacities less 
than 6,500 gpd

Indirect Discharge EPR, Ch. 14, IDR
For soil-based systems with capacities at or 
greater than 6,500 gpd

If soil conditions allow for larger 
systems, these system

Direct Discharge
Title 40 CFR, Section 
122,
NPDES

For systems with point source discharges 
to waterways

Not applicable 

Abbreviations:
EPR = Enviornmental Protection Rules
WW Rules = Wastewater System and Potable Water Supply Rules
IDR = Indirect Discharge Rules
CFR = Code of Federal Regulations (Title 40 is "Protection of Environment")
NPDES = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 12 

 
Table 4 - Isolation Distances as outlined in the WW Rules 

 
Known private water supplies, and wastewater systems within the project area are depicted in 
Figure 3. 
 

1.8 Community Engagement 
 
[Talk with residents at 60% - Once alternatives are established, schedule a public meeting to 
hear stakeholders’ opinions] 
 
[Then 90% public meeting to review final options, solicit any final comments prior to 
finalization]  

Leachfield Septic Tank Sewer Pipe
Drilled Well 100-400 50 50
Gravel Pack Well, Shallow Well or Spring 159-500 75 75
Water Main 50 50 10
Water Service 25 25 10
Water Storage Tank 50 50 50
Suction Water Pipe 100 50 50

Horizontal Distance (Feet)



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 13 

2.0  EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
The Study Area is moderately developed and includes single family and multifamily residences, 
and a few small commercial businesses. Many small businesses are in renovated residential 
homes.  
 
Out of the 114 parcels in the Study Area; 83 are residential, 24 are commercial, four (4) are 
undeveloped, and one (1) is a farm. 
Applying for and receiving the Village Center designation from the State of Vermont allows the 
village to take advantage of more lucrative funding for municipal. Although the Study Areas is 
limited due to funding restrictions, the town should consider abutting neighborhoods into this 
Study Area when considering alternatives.  
The following were used to document and evaluate existing water and wastewater facilities: 
 Property Survey Information  
 Phone and in-person interviews with State regulators and Ascutney property owners 
 Review of available information on the State of Vermont website, including: 

- Geographical Information System (GIS) data  
- Public Water System Information 
- Regional Office Permit Information 
- Hazardous Waste Site Information 

 
2.1 Study Area 

 
Refer to Study Area depicted in Figure 6.  
 

2.2 History 
  

2.3 Existing Community Water Systems (Study Area) 
 
Ascutney Village has a designated public community water system (PCWS) (WSID#VT00005339) 
that serves the Village designation and nearby surrounding areas. Information on the Village’s 
public community water system is provided below: 
  
Ascutney Fire District No. 2 [WSID#5339]– The Village system operates as a PCWS, serving 
approximately 485 users through 185 service connections. The system is fed by two gravel 
packed wells on the North side of the Village, and supplies many of the homes and businesses 
along U.S. Route 5 (From Cherry Lane south to VT Route 131) and along VT Route 131 (from the 
Connecticut River Bridge to Interstate 91).  
 
The total permitted yield of the system is 74,000 gallons per day (gpd), or 160 gallons per minute 
(gpm) when the two source wells (WL001 and WL002) are operated for 24 hours. 
 

  



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 14 

2.4 Existing Wastewater Systems (Study Area) 
 
There are no community wastewater systems in the Town; all houses and businesses are served 
by private septic systems. The public water system in portions of Ascutney helps to 
accommodate increased density desired for the village, but lot sizes still need to accommodate 
on-site or shared septic systems.  
 
This situation severely limits growth in Ascutney. In addition, many of the Ascutney septic 
systems are aging and have limited room for replacement systems.  
 
Figure 7 depicts existing water system and wastewater system data avaible. Figure 8 decpits 
onsite wastewater disposal soil mapping withing the study area. 
 

2.5 Design Flows 
 
Properly determining demand and design capacity of a wastewater disposal system is a critical 
component of this study and in completing the engineering design and permitting because 
they not only affect the size of the components, and cost but also dictate which regulatory 
standard applies. 
Table 5 outlines the current wastewater demands within the Study area. A State permitting 
search was conducted to identify wastewater demands where available. The table does make 
some general assumptions on flow where specific demand data does not exist. In developing 
the design flows, Table 8-1 and 8-2 of Chapter 1 of the EPRs were utilized. For typical residential 
flows demand was set at 245 gpd. 
 
Table 5 – Study Area Design Flow 

 
 
The wastewater design flows are anticipated to range between 20,000 and 30,000 gallons per 
day, at full build out and current land uses.  Considerations for growth and an allowance for 
infiltration and inflow could necessitate a wastewater system that has a design capacity of 
30,000 to 40,000 gallons per day at full buildout. See Table 6 below which shows the design 
flows to account for all developed properties within the zoned village. 
 
Table 6 – Design Flows for Designated Village 
 
[Inset Table 6 here] 

Type of Wastewater Flows Gallons per Day Notes

Residential 17,150 Estimated using EPRs Table 8-1, 8-2, & 8-3

Commercial 11,347
From VT DEC Wastewater Regional Office 
Permit Search and estimations using EPRs 

Table 8-1,8-2, and 8-3
Farm 0

Total Wastewater Flows 28,497



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 15 

 
All wastewater expenses are currently the responsibility of the individual landowners.  
 
 

2.6 Water / Energy / Waste Audits 
 
A landowner survey will be disussed and developed with the Town for distribution to residents 
to collect addition data and further engage community related to the study. 
 
  



 

 
Village of Ascutney – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                   Page 16 

3.0  NEED FOR PROJECT 
 

3.1 Health, Sanitation, and Security 
 
Properly designed wastewater disposal systems, which operate and function as designed, are 
critical to maintaining public health and protecting the environment.  As noted in Section 2.0 of 
this report, the existing development within the project area limits the overall land area which 
is available for current and future wastewater disposal. The Village includes a configuration of 
small lots, some served w/ individual on-site water and all utilizing onsite wastewater disposal 
systems which likely do not meet current design and siting standards. 
 
In some communities, this condition has been defined as an “emergent condition” - where there 
is no obvious public health threat (such as widespread septic system failures or bacterial 
contamination of water supplies), but the inability to meet current standards acknowledges the 
risk to public health is real and presumed 
 
Development of a community wastewater system would provide enhancement and protection 
of water quality in the Connecticut River, address limitations presented by the density of 
existing development and reduce/eliminate conflicts with drinking water supplies, and expand 
or replacement of existing onsite disposal fields.   
 

3.2 Aging Infrastructure 
 
Given the limited number of properties in Ascutney Village that have a State permit for their 
water and wastewater system and the age of existing homes and buildings within the project 
study area, it is inferred many onsite wastewater systems have been in place for decades.   
 
Depending on the site-specific conditions, such as types of soil and depth to groundwater, and 
the level of maintenance performed, it is unclear what the remaining useful life is of these 
systems. The typical lifespan for a residential septic system is 40 years or less. Use of 
pretreatment with septic tank effluent filters, regular pumping of septic tanks, and monitoring 
what is disposed of in household wastewater may help to prolong the life of a septic system, 
however, it appears that many of these systems are at or exceeding the expected useful life. As 
part of the study, a questionnaire has/will be distributed to landowners within the study area to 
collect information on individual infrastructure. 
 
The development of community wastewater solutions would address the aging infrastructure 
within the Village and limit the need for expansion/replacement of onsite disposal systems.  
 

3.3 Reasonable Growth 
 
 

























 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 1 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 

 

VILLAGE OF PERKINSVILLE 

COMMUNITY WASTEWATER 

FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 

30% Report Draft 

 

 

 

 

WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 

 

 

 

2023 

 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 2 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
 

PERKINSVILLE VILLAGE 
COMMUNITY WASTEWATER 

FEASIBILITY STUDY 
 

WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 
 

2023 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................... 4 
1.0 Project Planning ....................................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Location, and Study Area ............................................................................................................................ 5 
1.2 Goals of the Study .......................................................................................................................................... 5 
1.3 Planning Analysis ........................................................................................................................................... 6 
1.4 Environmental Resources Present ........................................................................................................... 6 
1.5 Historical Resources Present ...................................................................................................................... 9 
1.6 Population Trends ...................................................................................................................................... 10 
1.7 Regulatory Requirements ........................................................................................................................ 11 
1.8 Community Engagement ......................................................................................................................... 12 

2.0  Existing Conditions ................................................................................................................ 13 

2.1 Study Area ..................................................................................................................................................... 13 
2.2 History ............................................................................................................................................................. 13 
2.3 Existing Community Water Systems (Study Area) .......................................................................... 13 
2.4 Existing Wastewater Systems (Study Area) ........................................................................................ 13 
2.5 Design Flows ................................................................................................................................................. 13 
2.6 Water / Energy / Waste Audits ................................................................................................................ 14 

3.0  Need For Project ..................................................................................................................... 15 

3.1 Health, Sanitation, and Security ............................................................................................................. 15 
3.2 Aging Infrastructure ................................................................................................................................... 15 
3.3 Reasonable Growth .................................................................................................................................... 15 

Figures:  
Figure 1 – Project Investigation Map 
Figure 2 – Perkinsville Study Area 
Figure 3 – Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
Figure 4 – Onsite Sewage Disposal Soils Map 
Figure 5 – Potential Wastewater Disposal Sites  



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 3 

 
Tables: 
Table 1 – Perkinsville Village Hazardous Waste Sites  
Table 2 – Weathersville Population Trends 
Table 3 – Regulatory Summary for Wastewater Systems in Vermont 
Table 4 - Isolation Distances as outlined in the WW Rules 
Table 5 –Study Area Design Flow 
Table 6 – Design Flows for Whole Village District 
 
Appendices:  
Appendix A – Weathersfield Zoning Map 
Appendix B – ANR Atlas Natural Resource Maps 
Appendix C – Weathersfield Town Plan 
Appendix D – Excerpts from the Connecticut River – Black River – Mill Brook Tactical Basin Plan 

  



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

To be completed once the report is in 60-90%  



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 5 

1.0 PROJECT PLANNING 
 
The Town of Weathersfield (hereinafter referred to as “the Town”) is a rural-residential 
community in Bennington County, Vermont with two densely developed designated village 
centers. The village centers include Ascutney Village and Perkinsville Village. Both Villages were 
analyzed as part of this report and are depicted in Figure 1. 

 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc. (OCE) has developed this study in collaboration with the Town and 
to adhere to the Outline of a Preliminary Engineering Report for Vermont Village Wastewater 
Projects. 

   
1.1 Location, and Study Area 

 
The “Study Area” for this report is limited to the Village Center Designation limits and a 1,320-
foot buffer from the Village Center Designation boundary. This area is defined as such due to 
regulations that are related to funding for any potential project resulting from this report. 
Connections outside of the service area will not be eligible for Water Investment Division’s 
Village Wastewater funding. The Perkinsville Village Center, project limits, surrounding 
topography, and other notable features are depicted in Figure 6.  

 
The “Study Area” is defined as the area the Town will focus on providing opportunities for 
wastewater solutions and is the designated Village Center for Perkinsville Village in the Town of 
Weathersfield, Vermont. The study area is roughly situated between the intersection of VT Route 
106, Quarry Road, Old Center Street, Maple and High Streets. 

 
1.2 Goals of the Study 

 
The existing Town Plan indicates the following broad-based goals regarding water and 
wastewater disposal: 
 
 Protect surface and groundwater resources to assure an adequate water supply for 

residents and commercial establishments. 
 

 Develop options that provide adequate wastewater disposal for all properties in Perkinsville 
with inadequate/failing wastewater systems.  

 
Under the topic of economic development, the Town aims to provide economic benefit to the 
community, while being consistent with the goals of maintaining historical development 
patterns and encouraging the preservation of the Town’s natural resources. 

 
 Develop an effective planning process. 

 
 Effectively manage future growth. 

 
 Maintain and enhance recreational opportunities. 

 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 6 

 Promote opportunities for adequate housing to meet the needs of all residents in 
Weathersfield. 
 

 Provide outstanding educational and childcare services to the community. 
 

The specific objectives for this study are: 
 
 Review readily available information, including previous studies, to identify areas where 

construction of new community onsite or offsite disposal systems have been considered in 
the past, are needed based on current uses, or would be necessary if new development 
occurs; 

 
 Identify potential wastewater disposal sites; 

 
 Develop and analyze wastewater treatment system(s) and/or management alternatives; 

 
 Prepare preliminary conceptual plans and cost opinions for meeting the immediate needs 

of the Town; 
 

 Present preliminary funding options and the potential range of user fees that may be 
needed to support the preliminary concepts; 

 
 Develop the Study following the Water Investment Division and USDA Rural Development 

Preliminary Engineering Report standards so identified alternatives can pursue further 
funding as needed. 

 
1.3 Planning Analysis 

 
The Town has ten (10) zoning districts that specify the types of land use allowed within each 
area. These zones are; Conservation 10, Hamlet, Highway-Commercial, Industrial, Rural-
Residential, Rural-Residential Reserve, Village, and Historic Preservation.   Most of the Ascutney 
Village Study Area lies within the Village and Highway-Commercial-Residential districts. The 
zoning bylaws do not have wastewater regulations that apply to specific zoning districts. The 
town zoning map can be found in Appendix A. 
 
Providing the Villages with community-based wastewater solutions would greatly reduce the 
limits on the development of the Village due to small-scale residential wastewater systems and 
alleviate the risk of systems failing in a high-density development area. A community-based 
system would also allow for economic growth for local businesses and additional housing 
opportunities.  
 

1.4 Environmental Resources Present 
 
A community project of this type will likely require federal funding, and thus an environmental 
review under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) will be required. The study area was 
reviewed using the State of Vermont Agency of Natural Resources online interactive database 
and mapping tools.  Appendix B includes ANR Resource Atlas Maps depicting known natural 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 7 

and environmental resources within the project area.  Mapped resources that are shown 
include: 

 
 Surface water (lakes, ponds, and streams); 
 Floodways, Floodplains, and River Corridors; 
 Wetlands and Vernal Pools; 
 Primary Agricultural Soils; 
 Hazardous waste sites, hazardous waste site generators 
 Fish and Wildlife Resources 
 Deer wintering areas; and 
 Drinking Water Source Protection Areas; and 
 
A preliminary desktop review of the Study Area for these environmental resources and 
constraints was conducted and key findings are summarized below: 

 

Surface Waters 
 
The major surface water present in Perkinsville is the Black River, with the Village located to the 
west of the River. According to the Weathersfield Town Plan (Appendix C) adopted in 2017, the 
Black River is a somewhat shallow river that flows across a rock and boulder-strewn channel into 
Weathersfield from Cavendish. It is valued for fishing and its scenic natural beauty. Several 
unnamed tributaries flow from west to east, emptying into the Black River. 
 
Weathersfield lies within the Connecticut River Drainage Basin; split among the watersheds of 
the Black River, Mill Brook, and smaller east-draining watersheds south of Mill Brook (Basin #10). 
The VT ANR has developed a Tactical Basin Plan (TBP) for Basin #10, which will include both the 
Mill Brook and the Black River. Refer to excerpts from the TBP in Appendix D. 
 
Floodways, Floodplains, and River Corridors 
 
Flood hazard areas and river corridors are present within the Study Area, mainly following the 
Batten Kill. The mapped river corridor roughly follows the FEMA floodplain areas. 
 
Significant damage occurred to Routes 131 and 106 in both Weathersfield and Cavendish                               
during Tropical Storm Irene as a result of the flooding. Wastewater systems are not built in 
floodways, floodplains, or river corridors as they pose a risk to environmental and human health 
during severe flooding events, like those seen in recent years. 

 
Wetlands 
 
There are Class II wetlands that have been identified within the village designated area, 
following the Black River. Primary wetland values include fish, wildlife, and migratory bird 
habitat; flood and erosion protection; nutrient and pollution filtration; ground water recharge; 
aesthetics and open space; and sites for educational and recreational activities.  
 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 8 

It is reasonable to presume that unmapped wetlands may exist on some properties within the 
study area. Further analysis and site-specific wetland assessments will be required for any 
potential disposal areas and other infrastructure. Development within any wetland deemed 
Class II is not permitted, but temporary impacts to those wetlands or their associated buffers 
may be permittable under certain circumstances.  The overall goal of any infrastructure project 
should be to avoid and minimize wetland impacts.  
 
Hazardous Waste Sites 
 
Five hazardous waste sites have been listed by the State of Vermont within the Study Area. All 
the sites are clustered in the Village Center, and a summary of the sites can be found below in 
Table 1. Impacts from these sites would be limited to construction of potential sewer piping 
infrastructure.  Should a project move forward, considerations would be made to make a 
contaminated soils plan for the possibility of running in to contaminated soils during 
construction.  

 
Table 1 – Summary of Hazardous Sites identified within the Perkinsville Village Center 
 

Hazardous 
Site 

Site 
Number 

Source of 
Contamination Priority 

Use 
Restriction? Project Status 

Site 
Closure 

Date 

Perkinsville 
Community 

Church 
931432 UST – Gasoline NFAP No 

Workplan 
Approved, 
Investigation 
Ongoing, Site 
Closed. 

2-01-
1994 

Weathersfield 
Elementary 

School 
20043265 UST – Heating 

Oil 
SMAC No 

6,800 and 500-
gallon USTs 
removed 
8/16/04. 
Contamination 
found in soil. Soil 
determined to 
be clean in 2008 
and spread 
onsite. No 
contamination 
in groundwater. 

11-02-
2011 

 
Primary Agricultural Soils 
 
The Village Center does contain soils which are classified as primary agricultural soil by the State 
of Vermont.  The designation is important for development projects which would require an Act 
250 permit, as impacts on the land’s ability to be used for agriculture must be minimized.  Due 
to existing uses and development densities within the Study Area, most of the identified soils 
would not meet the Agency of Agricultural definition because the soils are of not adequate size 
to support a large-scale agricultural operation. 

 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 9 

Fish and Wildlife Resources 
 
There is one area within the 1,320-foot potential service boundary that contains a Rare, 
threatened, and endangered (RTE) species. The RTE species area is marked as an animal; and is 
located throughout the Study Area.  
 
Deer wintering areas 
 
There are no known significant natural communities mapped within the Study Area. A small 
portion of Deer Wintering Areas are present to the northwest of the Village, and on the 1,500-
foot boundary.  
 
Deer wintering areas within the potential service boundary are located on steep slopes and are 
not suitable for on-site wastewater disposal systems. 
 
Groundwater Resources 
 
Residents of Perkinsville Village utilize private wells and the Town public water supply system 
(WSID#5339) to obtain potable drinking water.  
 

1.5 Historical Resources Present 
 
According to the Town Plan, Important historic structures and sites have been inventoried in 
the 1993 publication, Historic Sites and Structures, Weathersfield, Vermont. Sites and structures 
were included in the inventory because of their interesting architecture, their location(s) relative 
to Weathersfield or Vermont history, or their association with old Weathersfield families.  

 
There are no identified Native American archeological sites in Weathersfield, but. the 
Weathersfield area is likely to have Native American sites and artifacts. Significant Native 
American sites have been investigated at the confluence of the Sugar River and Connecticut 
River across from Ascutney where a Native American village site was discovered when the 
present bridge was built between Ascutney and Claremont. Lands adjacent to water courses 
were used by earlier populations for fishing and hunting grounds, water supplies, agriculture, 
and transportation. These lands may yield archeological artifacts and should be considered 
sensitive.  
 
When developing zoning bylaws, the town should consider means of encouraging the 
continued use and maintenance of historic structures and sites. 
 
Archaeological resource assessments (ARA) will be required for any identified alternative in this 
report. 

 

 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 10 

1.6 Population Trends 
 
According to the 2020 U.S. Census, Perkinsville currently has a population of 2,842. This 
represents an increase of 17 residents from the 2010 Census population of 2,825. Refer to the 
population by State, County and Town presented in Table 2 below.  

Table 2 – Population Trends 

 

Growth in Weathersfield during this period has been slowly decreasing. Though it seems that 
the population is increasing, average growth has been near zero and does not constitute a 
definite increasing trend. 
 

  

Year Vermont ±%
Windsor 
County

±%
Town of 

Weathersfield
±%

1990 562,758 -- 54,055 -- 2,674 --
2000 608,827 8.2% 57,418 6.2% 2,788 4.3%
2010 625,741 2.8% 56,670 -1.3% 2,825 1.3%
2020 643,077 2.8% 57,753 1.9% 2,842 0.6%

Average ±% = 0.46% Average ±% = 0.23% Average ±% = 0.21%

Data Source: US Decennial Census
Note:



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 11 

1.7 Regulatory Requirements 
 
The Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) Drinking Water and 
Groundwater Protection Division (DWGPD) regulates most of the water and wastewater 
systems throughout the State.  Table 3 presents a summary of the different categories of 
systems that may be considered for the Town in developing water and wastewater solutions for 
the Village. 
 
Table 3 – Regulatory Summary for Wastewater Systems in Vermont 

 

In Vermont, sanitary wastewater disposal systems are regulated under two sets of rules, 
depending on the design capacity.  Systems which are less than 6,500 gallons per day are 
considered “small scale” wastewater systems, and subject to Chapter 1 of the Vermont 
Environmental Protection Rules (EPRs), also known as the Vermont Wastewater and Potable 
Water Supply Rules (WW Rules). The WW Rules are applicable from single family residential 
septic systems up to shared community systems equivalent to the size of a development of 
approximately 25 homes. 

Soil-based wastewater systems with capacities of 6,500 gallons per day or greater are 
considered “indirect discharges” of sewage and are subject to Chapter 14 of the EPRs, the 
Indirect Discharge Rules (IDRs). For larger scale systems above 30,000 gpd (or approximately 
120 homes), the system is required to provide secondary wastewater treatment (such as an 
aerated lagoon) prior to discharge.  At this size, the IDRs also allow for “spray disposal,” which is 
similar to an irrigation system, where treated wastewater effluent is spread over a protected 
area and allowed to percolate into the ground.  These required systems are typically used in the 
ski areas and other locations where subsurface disposal is not practical. Systems larger than 
40,000 gpd require tertiary treatment, which requires significantly more expensive capital and 
operational costs.  These types of systems are likely not applicable for Weathersfield. 

Some wastewater systems have treatment facilities which discharge directly to a surface 
water source such as a lake or river, are regulated under the federal National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit program, administered by the DEC Watershed Management 
Division.  

Category of System
Regulatory 
Authority Description

Applicability to Arlington 
Community WW Study

Small-Scale EPR, Ch. 1, WW Rules
For soil-based systems with capacities less 
than 6,500 gpd

Indirect Discharge EPR, Ch. 14, IDR
For soil-based systems with capacities at or 
greater than 6,500 gpd

If soil conditions allow for larger 
systems, these system

Direct Discharge
Title 40 CFR, Section 
122,
NPDES

For systems with point source discharges 
to waterways

Not applicable 

Abbreviations:
EPR = Enviornmental Protection Rules
WW Rules = Wastewater System and Potable Water Supply Rules
IDR = Indirect Discharge Rules
CFR = Code of Federal Regulations (Title 40 is "Protection of Environment")
NPDES = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 12 

Table 4 - Isolation Distances as outlined in the WW Rules 

 

Known private water supplies, and wastewater systems within the project area are depicted in 
Figure 3. 

1.8 Community Engagement 
 

[Talk with residents at 60% - Once alternatives are established, schedule a public meeting to 
hear stakeholders’ opinions] 

[Then 90% public meeting to review final options, solicit any final comments prior to 
finalization]  

Leachfield Septic Tank Sewer Pipe
Drilled Well 100-400 50 50
Gravel Pack Well, Shallow Well or Spring 159-500 75 75
Water Main 50 50 10
Water Service 25 25 10
Water Storage Tank 50 50 50
Suction Water Pipe 100 50 50

Horizontal Distance (Feet)



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 13 

2.0  EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
The Study Area is moderately developed and includes single family and multifamily residences, 
and a few small commercial businesses. Many small businesses are in renovated residential 
homes.  
 
Out of the 83 parcels in the Study Area; 79 are residential, and 4 are commercial. 

Although the Study Area is limited due to funding restrictions, the town should consider 
abutting neighborhoods into this Study Area when considering alternatives.  

The following were used to document and evaluate existing water and wastewater facilities: 
 Property Survey Information  
 Phone and in-person interviews with State regulators and Perkinsville property owners 
 Review of available information on the State of Vermont website, including: 

- Geographical Information System (GIS) data  
- Public Water System Information 
- Regional Office Permit Information 
- Hazardous Waste Site Information 

 
2.1 Study Area 

 
Refer to Study Area depicted in Figure 6.   
 

2.2 History 
  

2.3 Existing Community Water Systems (Study Area) 
The Village of Perkinsville is served by all private wells 

2.4 Existing Wastewater Systems (Study Area) 
There are no public wastewater systems in the Town; all houses and businesses are served by 
private septic systems.  

Perkinsville is served by on-site septic systems, although there are several shared systems. This 
situation severely limits growth in Perkinsville. In addition, many of the Perkinsville septic 
systems are aging and have little room for replacement systems. On-site septic systems are 
generally considered adequate to accommodate the desired future growth patterns in the 
remainder of the Town. 

2.5 Design Flows 
Properly determining the demand and design capacity of a wastewater disposal system is a 
critical component of this study and in completing the engineering design and permitting 
because they not only affect the size of the components, and cost but also dictate which 
regulatory standard applies. 



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 14 

Table 5 outlines the current wastewater demands within the Study area. A State permitting 
search was conducted to identify wastewater demands where available. The table does make 
some general assumptions on flow where specific demand data does not exist. In developing 
the design flows, Table 8-1 and 8-2 of Chapter 1 of the EPRs were utilized. For typical residential 
flows demand was set at 245 gpd. 

 

Table 5 – Proposed System Design Flow 

 

Planning for future growth and the possibility of adding neighborhood designations to 
abutting clusters of developed land, the wastewater design flows are anticipated to range 
between 15,000 and 25,000 gallons per day, at full build out and current land uses.   

Considerations for growth, and an allowance for infiltration and inflow could necessitate a 
wastewater system which has a design capacity of 25,000 to 30,000 gallons per day at full 
buildout. See Table 6 below which shows the design flows to account for all developed 
properties within the zoned village. 

Table 6 – Design Flows for Whole Village District 

[Inset Table 6 here] 

2.6 Water / Energy / Waste Audits 
 
 

  

Type of Wastewater Flows Gallons per Day Notes

Residential 19,355 Estimated using EPRs Table 8-1, 8-2, & 8-3

Commercial 510
From VT DEC Wastewater Regional Office 
Permit Search and estimations using EPRs 

Table 8-1,8-2, and 8-3
Total Wastewater Flows 19,865



 

 
Village of Perkinsville – Community Wastewater Feasibility Study 2023 
Otter Creek Engineering, Inc.                        Page 15 

3.0  NEED FOR PROJECT 
 

3.1 Health, Sanitation, and Security 
 
Properly designed wastewater disposal systems, which operate and function as designed, are 
critical to maintaining public health and protecting the environment.  As noted in Section 2.0 of 
this report, the existing development within the project area limits the overall land area which 
is available for current and future wastewater disposal. The Village includes a configuration of 
small lots, some served w/ individual on-site water and all utilizing onsite wastewater disposal 
systems which likely do not meet current design and siting standards. 
 
In some communities, this condition has been defined as an “emergent condition” - where there 
is no obvious public health threat (such as widespread septic system failures or bacterial 
contamination of water supplies), but the inability to meet current standards acknowledges the 
risk to public health is real and presumed 
 
Development of a community wastewater system would provide enhancement and protection 
of water quality in the Black River, address limitations presented by the density of existing 
development and reduce/eliminate conflicts with drinking water supplies and expand or 
replacement of existing onsite disposal fields.   
 

3.2 Aging Infrastructure 
 
Given the limited number of properties in Perkinsville Village that have a State permit for their 
water and wastewater system and the age of existing homes and buildings within the project 
study area, it is inferred many onsite wastewater systems have been in place for decades.  The 
development of community wastewater solutions would address the aging infrastructure 
within the Village and limit the need for expansion/replacement of onsite disposal systems. 
 
Depending on the site-specific conditions, such as types of soil and depth to groundwater, and 
the level of maintenance performed, it is unclear what the remaining useful life is of these 
systems. The typical lifespan for a residential septic system is 40 years or less. Use of 
pretreatment with septic tank effluent filters, regular pumping of septic tanks, and monitoring 
what is disposed of in household wastewater may help to prolong the life of a septic system, 
however, it appears that many of these systems are at or exceeding the expected useful life.  
 
As part of the study, a questionnaire has/will be distributed to landowners within the study area 
to collect information on individual infrastructure.  

 
3.3 Reasonable Growth 
 



























Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed
SCOPING STUDY
Local Concerns Meeting

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 2

Project Team

Martha Harrison, Planner

Scott Gurley, VTrans Project 
Manager

John Crock, PhD, UVM Consulting Archaeology 
Program, Cultural Resources Review

Chris Rivet, PE, Project Manager
Jenny Austin, PE, Senior Project Engineer
Emily Lewis, PLA, LEED AP, Landscape Architect/ 
Planner
Andrew Hoak, PE, PG, Project Director

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 3

Why are we here?
Project Purpose

To study options for a new sand and salt 
shed for the Weathersfield Town Highway 
Department, and to provide issues, costs, and 
recommendations. 
This project is based on the existing town garage 
location at 483 Stoughton Pond Road. 

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 4

What is a Scoping Study?

Big visions for the entire town. 
Public engagement leads the 
process. The visions are broad 
enough to cover a wide range 
of ideas. Sets the direction for 
future projects. 

Investigates a specific facility 
to develop further. Examines 
alternative designs with public 
input. Provides costs that allow 
a community to budget for future 
improvements. Supports state 
and federal grant awards. 

Detailed design documents 
which allow a contractor 
to go build a new street, 
building, park, or bridge. This 
phase includes development 
and filing of detailed permits 
for environmental, cultural, 
and other project impacts. 

After so much work, its 
time to put a shovel to the 
ground and build a new 
street, master planned by 
the community. 

8,586

436.2

Weathersfield Sand & Salt - Rivers and Floods
Vermont Agency of Natural Resources

6,504

© Vermont Agency of Natural Resources

330.0

1:

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Meters330.00

NOTES
Map created using ANR's Natural 
Resources Atlas

LEGEND

165.00

vermont.gov

DISCLAIMER: This map is for general reference only. Data layers that appear on
this map may or may not be accurate, current, or otherwise reliable. ANR and

the State of Vermont make no representations of any kind, including but not
limited to, the warranties of merchantability, or fitness for a particular use, nor

are any such warranties to be implied with respect to the data on this map.

December 13, 2023

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION
1" = 542 1cm = 65Ft. Meters

Flood Hazard Areas (Only FEMA-digitized data)
AE (1-percent annual chance floodplains with elevations)

A (1-percent annual chance floodplains without elevations)

AO (1-percent annual chance zone of shallow flooding 1-3 
feet)

0.2-percent annual chance flood hazard zone

River Corridors (Aug 27, 2019)
.5 - 2 sqmi.
.25-.5 sqmi.
Parcels (standardized)
Town Boundary

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

!e

£¤5

£¤5

BALTIMORE RD

MILL

RD

W
ES

TO
N

 H
TS

B
R

O
O

K
R

D

CO
UN

TY
RD

STOUGHTON

POND RD

AIRPORT RD

BOWEN HILL RD

BALTIMORE
RD

LA
VI

G
N

E
RD

YEWELL LN

BEAVERPOND RD

BR
AN

C
H

BR
O

O
K

R
D

LYONSDR

THRASHER RD

MAPLE ST

M
IL

L 
R

D

TH 68

TH 22

R
ES

ER
VO

IR
 R

D

CHERRY
LN

SE
N

N
A

R
D

ROBERTS RD

TA
R

BE
LL

H
I L

L
R

D

EAST
RD

SKYLIN
E D

R

JA
R

V
IS

R
D

M
AP

LE
ST

ASC
U

TN
EY

N
O

TC
H

 R
D

BRIA
N

JO
NES R

D

DRUM
LI

N
R

D

QUARRY RD

G
R

AVELIN
 R

D

C
LA

R
K

ST

BUTTERFIELD

HILL R
D

LO
TTER

Y LN

ASCUTNEY

BASIN

RD

R
O

B
IN

S
O

N

R
D

K
EN

D
R

IC
KS

C
O

R
N

ER
R

D

JOHN
JENSEN RD

H
IG

H
ST

JARVIS

EXT

TOWN
FARM RD

JEFFREY
LN

BISHO
P

CAM
P RD

C
O

W
D

R
EY

R
D

U
P

P
E

R
FA

LLS
 R

D

DOWNERHILL RD

TH
35

GREEN
VALLEY RD

CENTER

GROVE RD
M

EAD
O

W
 LN

PI
P

E
R

R
D

W
E A

TH
E

R
SF

IE
LD

C
EN

TE
R

R
D

RILEY DR

STO
KES R

D

CADY HILL RD

LIT
TLE

AS
CUTNEY RD

GREENBUSH RD

ASA GROUT LN

GRAVES R
D

S
U

N
S

E
T

B
LV

D

WELLWOOD

ORCHARD RD

DAN JARVIS RD

P
E

R
KI N

S
H

I LL
R

D

G
O

U
LD

E
N

 R
ID

G
E

 R
D

HENRY

GO

ULD RD

VICTORY

CIR

E

CAMP

HI

LLRD

GULF RD

LI
TT

LE
C

A
N

AD
A

R
D

H
IG

H
 M

E
A

D
O

W
 R

D

W
EATH

ER
BEE

H
ILL R

D

CARLEY

RD

C
O

O
K

S
PO

N
D

 R
D

W CAMP
HILL RD

GROUT RD

KI
M

B
A

LL
FA

R
M

R
D

E
U

R
E

K
A

R
D

G
IR

D
LO

T
R

D

VI
C

TO
R

Y
 D

R

W
H

EE
LE

R
C

A
M

P
R

D

AMSDEN

SCHOOL RD

TE
N

N
E

Y
H

ILL R
D

D
A

KE
H

IL
L

R
D

M
ELO

D
Y

LN

D
IV

O
LL

PA
S

TU
R

E
R

D

OLD BOW RD

ST
EV

EN
S 

R
D

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

VIE
W

D
R

FERRY RD

PL
A

IN
S

 R
D

TARBELLHILL RD

SO
U

TH

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

R
D

FE
LC

H
VI

LL
E

G
U

LF
R

D

¬«10

¬«131

¬«106

¬«106

¬«131

¬«44A

READING

WINDSOR

SPRINGFIELD

WEST WINDSOR

CH
E

STE
R

CAVENDISH

B
A

LT
IM

O
R

E

§̈¦91

Town of  Weathersfield,  Vermont
Town Plan Update 2017

") Civic or public meeting place
") Education
") House of worship
!( Commercial
!( Industrial, Manufacturing, Gravel pits/ Quarry, etc
!( Campground, Hotel or Motel
!( Farm
") Residential (including mobile home)
#* Substation and other utilities
#* Other buildings
G Cemetery
!e State Airport

   
Interstate
US and State Highway
Class 2 Town Highway
Class 3 Town Highway
   

River
Lakes and Ponds
   
Parcel Boundary
Village of Perkinsville
Weathersfield Boundary
Other Town Boundaries

³

P.O. Box 320, Ascutney, VT 05030
802-674-9201       www.swcrpc.org

Map Drawn 09/28/2016

Current Land Use Map
Adopted: May 1, 2017

G

G

£¤5

ASCUTNEY

STORE RD

BRIA
N

JO
NES R

D

M
AR

TI
N

 S
T

LAWRENCEFARM RD

JE
NNESS R

D

JASON

SMITH RD

RILEY DR

S
U

N
S

E
T

BLV
D

HIDDEN
GLEN RD

CEMETERY
RD

TENNEY

HILL
R

D

THRASHER RD

¬«12

¬«131

§̈¦91

FIRE
HOUSE LN

TH
IR

D
 S

T

FIRST ST

R
ED

 M
AP

LE
 L

N

TR
AI

LS
EN

D
C

O
U

N
TR

Y
SK

YL
IN

E 
BL

VD

VI
LL

A
G

E
VI

E
W

 L
N

ST
AR

D
U

ST
 C

IRR
U

N
N

IN
G

BE
AR

 T
R

L

TILLMAN
DR

OLDBRIDGE RD

GARDEN WY

0 0.15 0.3
Miles

0 0.5 1
Miles

C
la

re
m

on
t

Charlestown
C

or
ni

sh

For more details about specific civic
and utility uses, including conserved
land, see the Utilities and Facilities 
Map.

Data Sources: Buildings (E911 April 
2016), Airport (VTrans 2012), 
Cemeteries (VTrans 2001 & RPC
2013), Parcel Boundary (CA 2016),
Roads (VTrans 2015), Town & 
Village Boundaries (VCGI 2012 & 
NHGranit 2009), Rivers and Ponds 
(VHD 2008), Aerials (NAIP 2016)

Inset - Ascutney

VT State Plane, Meters, NAD 83

For planning purposes only.
Not for regulatory interpretation.

Data depicted on this map is based on
best available information.

STRATEGIC PLAN

Public Engagement: High Public Engagement: Moderate Public Engagement: Low Public Engagement: Minimal

Federal & State 
Funding

Local Funding

$$ $ $$$ $$$$$

SCOPING STUDY CONSTRUCTION 
DOCUMENTS & 
PERMITS

BUILT 
IMPROVEMENTS

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 5

Project Area

Existing 
Salt Shed

Existing Town 
Garage

Equipment 
Storage Shed

Sand Screen 
& Sand Pile

Solar 
Field

Project 
Area

Stoughton 
Pond Rd

Black 
River

Black River 
North Branch

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 6

Characteristics and Constraints
21.13 acre site
In the town Highway 
Commercial Zone (HC)
Uses: Town highway 
department operations, 
storage of vehicles, 
equipment, maintenance, 
and storing salt and sand 
for winter

Town Garage Existing Sand Bunker

Town Garage Sand Pile

Solar Array Gravel Driveway Sand and Gravel Land Cover

http://www.dubois-king.com


Weathersfield Sand & Salt Shed Scoping Study | Local Concerns Meeting :: 7

Next Steps
• The project team will develop design concepts 

based on the project’s purpose and what we 
heard tonight.

• In the February 2024, we will host our second 
public meeting to present alternatives and ask 
for your input.

http://www.dubois-king.com


FY25 EQUIPMENT PROPOSAL 
 

The Highway Department is requesting the replacement of their 2006 430 CAT Backhoe. The 
Backhoe currently has 7,964 hours on it. We estimate the trade in value to be between $35,000 
and $45,000. The hours on this Backhoe are high, and the excavator attachment will need to be 
rebuilt in case we continue to operate it. The machine is currently on light duty. 
 
The Highway Department is proposing that we replace the Backhoe with a wheeled excavator. 
After extensive research, the department has found this to be the most viable option. 
 

1) Replacing the backhoe with a new backhoe will not improve our efficiency. A backhoe 
cannot reach into the back of our tandem axle dump trucks.  

2) An excavator is 30-50% more efficient than a backhoe when ditching.  
3) A tracked excavator does not have the mobility of a wheeled excavator and requires a 

special license to transport it on a trailer. We would also need to buy a trailer in case a 
tracked excavator is chosen.  

4) A wheeled excavator can be used more efficiently and safely to remove trees and debris 
after storms and does not a require a trailer or special license. A wheeled excavator will 
also be more efficient during ditching and culvert replacement projects, which make up a 
large share of the department’s work during spring, summer, and fall.  

 
FINANCING  
 
A new backhoe will cost between $200,000 - $215,000. A wheeled excavator will cost between 
$220,000-$230,000. We estimate between $35,000 and $45,000 on the trade in value, so the net 
difference for the backhoe is $165,000 - $180,000 and the net difference for a wheeled excavator 
is between $185,000 - $195,000.  
 
We’re proposing the use of $115,000 - $125,000 from Highway Department Equipment 
Reserves, and $70,000 from either a loan or from ARPA.   
 
We currently have $219,278 in Highway Equipment reserves, and we’re proposing to transfer 
$40,000 into this account from the cumulative highway fund balance. In the case that transfer is 
approved, there will be $259,278 in this reserve account. Purchasing a wheeled excavator with 
the abovementioned financing will leave this reserve account with $134,278-$144,278.  
 
Please review the following video: 
https://www.heavyequipmentguide.ca/article/31451/equipment-showdown-wheeled-excavator-
vs-backhoe-loader 
 
 
 

https://www.heavyequipmentguide.ca/article/31451/equipment-showdown-wheeled-excavator-vs-backhoe-loader
https://www.heavyequipmentguide.ca/article/31451/equipment-showdown-wheeled-excavator-vs-backhoe-loader


Town of Weathersfield, Vermont 
Warning for Annual Town Meeting 

Saturday, March 2nd and Tuesday, March 5, 2024 
 

Join with Google Meet: 
meet.google.com/ikz-mniv-ogv 

 
Join by Phone: 

(US) +1 413 752-0273    PIN: 604 283 179# 
 
The legal voters of the Town of Weathersfield, Vermont, are hereby notified and warned to meet at the 
Weathersfield School, 135 Schoolhouse Road in Ascutney, in the Town of Weathersfield, Vermont, -OR- 
virtually on Saturday, the 2nd day of March 2024, at 12:30 P.M., to act on the following articles: 
 
Article 1: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield accept the reports of the Town’s 

officers for the period from July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023? 
Article 2: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield, in accordance with 17 V.S.A. § 2664 

and 22 V.S.A. §, authorize the Proctor Library Trustees to expend such grant 
monies, gifts, or bequests which may be received by the Proctor Library, in 
accordance of said grants, gifts, or bequests? 

Article 3: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the Select Board to borrow 
money, if necessary, to pay current expenses in anticipation of taxes in accordance 
with the provisions of Title 24, Section 1786 of the Vermont Statutes Annotated? 

Article 4: To transact any other business deemed proper when met. 
Article 5: To elect all town officers as required by law.  

 
Moderator/ Town – One Year Town Clerk – Three Years 
Selectperson – Three Years Moderator/School – One Year 
Selectperson – Two Years School Director – Three Years 
Selectperson – Three Years/ 2 Year Rem. School Director – One Year 
Lister – Three Years School Director – One Year 
Lister 3 Year/1 Year Rem.  Library Trustee – Three Years  
Trustee of Public Funds - 3 Years Library Trustee – Three Years 
Cemetery Commissioner – 5 Years Library Trustee – Three Years 
Town Treasurer – Three Years  

 

Article 8: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of 
$1,810,161 for the support and operation of the Town’s General Fund? $1,368,442 
shall be raised by property taxation, allowing the Selectboard to set the appropriate 
tax rate.  

Article 9: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of 
$1,188,569 for the support and operation of the Town’s Highway Fund? 
$987,690 shall be raised by property taxation, allowing the Selectboard to set 
the appropriate tax rate.  

Article 10: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield approve the expenditure of 
$378,314 for the support and operation of the Town’s Solid Waste 
Management Facility? These monies shall be raised by non-tax revenues.  



Article 11: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield authorize the Selectboard to 
borrow funds not to exceed $70,000 for a period not to exceed 7-years for 
the purpose of purchasing an Excavator for the maintenance of Town 
Highways? The Excavator will replace a 2006 Backhoe. The cost of the 
Excavator will not exceed $230,000. The balance of the funds needed to 
purchase the excavator will come from the sale of the 2006 Backhoe, and no 
more than $125,000 from Highway Department Equipment Reserves.  

Article 12: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $1,000 
to support the activities of Friends of the Meeting House? (a 501 c3 non-
profit)?  

Article 13: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $2,683 
to support the activities of Health Care & Rehabilitative Services of 
Southeastern Vermont (HCRS) (a 501 c3 non-profit)?  

Article 14: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $2,000 
to support the activities of Senior Solutions – Council on Aging for 
Southeastern Vermont (a 501 c3 non-profit)?  

Article 15:  Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $1,500 
to support the activities of Southeastern Vermont Community Action 
(SEVCA) (a 501 c3 non-profit)?  

Article 16:  Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $750 to 
support the activities of Vermont Association for the Blind and Visually 
Impaired (VABVI) (a 501 c3 non-profit)?  

Article 17: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of 
$12,100 to support the activities of the Visiting Nurses and Hospice of VT 
and NH (a 501 c3 non-profit)?  

Article 18: Shall the voters of the Town of Weathersfield appropriate the sum of $700 to 
support the activities of SAPA TV (a 501 c3 non-profit)? [Not in Budget] 

 
Dated at Weathersfield, Windsor County, Vermont this ___ day of January 2024:  
 
______________________________ _________________________________ 
Michael Todd, Chairperson   David Fuller, Vice-Chairperson 
 
______________________________ _________________________________ 
Kelly O’Brien, Board Clerk   August Murray, Select Board Member 
  
______________________________  ATTEST: 
Wendy Smith, Select Board Member 
       Received at the Town of Weathersfield 
                     this _____ day of January 2024.  

 
 
_________________________ 
Flora Ann Dango, Town Clerk 








































	1. Select_Agenda_12-18-2023b
	5. sb_minutes_dec_4_0
	7. Memo - Change in Primary (002)
	8a. Ascutney Village WWFS Dox
	1. 466-007 D15 Ascutney Village WW 30_ PER (1)
	WWFS-Ascutney Village Maps

	8b. Perkinsville Village
	1. 466-007 D15 Perkinsville Village WW 30_ PER
	WWFS-Perkinsville Village Maps

	9. Weathersfield Sand and Salt Shed_LC meeting
	11. Backhoe Replacement Memo
	12. Town Warning - Final revised
	15. Warrant

